

# BASICS OF CRM 2015





## CONTENTS

Contents	2
About this Document	3
Non-Disclosure	3
Copyright	3
Document Control	3
Contact	3
1. Introduction	4
1.1. What is CRM?	4
1.2. Why CRM?	4
2. Using CRM	5
2.1. Outlook Client Vs Internet Explorer Client	5
Outlook Client	5
Internet Explorer client	5
2.2. CRM Navigation	7
Work area (1)	7
Ribbon (2)	8
Navigation Bar (3)	8
Views	9
Forms	9
Saving in CRM	
3. Account and Contact management	
3.1. What is a Contact?	
3.2. What is an Account?	
3.3. Building Relationships	
4. Activities	
4.1. My Activities	
5. Advanced Find	
5.1. Running an Advanced Find	
5.2. Examples of Advanced Find Searches	
5.3. Saving and Sharing an Advanced Find	
6. Marketing Lists	
6.1. Creating a Marketing List	
7. Reporting	
7.1. Accessing Reports	
8. Dashboards	
8.1. Creating a new Dashboard	



## **ABOUT THIS DOCUMENT**

This document has been prepared as a User Guide for Green 4 Basics of CRM 2015.

## **NON-DISCLOSURE**

All information contained in this document is to be treated as confidential information provided for the purpose of using Green 4 Solutions modules.

## COPYRIGHT

© Green 4 Solutions Ltd

While every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information contained in this publication, the information is supplied without representation or warranty of any kind, is subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part of Green 4 Solutions Limited therefore, assumes no responsibility and shall have no liability, consequential or otherwise, of any kind arising from this material or any part thereof, or any supplementary materials subsequently issued by Green 4 Solutions Limited. Green 4 Solutions Limited by Green 4 Solutions Limited.

### **DOCUMENT CONTROL**

Version	Date	Change	Initials
V1.0	18/03/2015	This is a new document	JW

## CONTACT

Any correspondence should be addressed to:

Product Development

Green 4 Solutions Limited 16-17 Midland Court Central Park Lutterworth Leicestershire LE17 4PN UK

Phone: +44 (0) 845 508 8149

Email: <a href="mailto:support@green4solutions.com">support@green4solutions.com</a>

Web: www.green4solutions.com



# **1. INTRODUCTION**

## 1.1. WHAT IS CRM?

Customer Relationship Management (CRM) is a model of managing a company or organisation's customer relationships.

• Microsoft Dynamics CRM is a business software application that allows companies of all sizes to track, manage and report on their customer interactions.

## 1.2. WHY CRM?

Moving to a CRM system brings with it a number of benefits:

- All customer data in a central repository
- Emails/phone calls recorded against contact as activities
- Targeted communications or email campaigns can be sent to customers
- Achieve a 360-degree view of the customer relationship
- Automate common business processes to reduce manual tasks
- Deliver a more consistent customer experience by streamlining customer interactions
- Enable executives to measure and report on key metrics related to their business so they can make better business decisions



# 2. USING CRM

CRM is a very powerful tool, and how we choose to use it can further benefit the productivity of users. Users can choose to access and navigate through CRM on different platforms. There are two ways of accessing CRM, through Internet Explorer and through Outlook. Which option to use is very much a business decision and the sections below aim to provide examples of scenarios where one particular user interface may be more suitable than the other.

## 2.1. OUTLOOK CLIENT VS INTERNET EXPLORER CLIENT

#### **OUTLOOK CLIENT**

Accessing CRM through the Outlook client (sometimes referred to as the Outlook plugin) enables users to view all their key customer data in one place. This is especially beneficial for users that already spend a considerable amount of time in Outlook in a typical working day. The table below describes the key benefits of using the Outlook client.

Function	Description
Email Tracking	Emails can be directly tracked from the Outlook client, and will be recorded against the contact or account in CRM
Tracking Appointments	Appointments can be tracked directly from the Outlook client and converted into an activity in CRM, allowing the user to effectively manage their appointments with clients.
Single Application User Interface	A key benefit of the Outlook client is that the user is provided with a single application user interface. This means that a user, who regularly utilises Outlook, can remain in this program without having to open multiple windows.
Conditional Formatting	Through the Outlook plugin – data can be further enhanced using the conditional formatting tool. This allows the user to help organise the data available to them.

#### Scenario:

An example of a user, or department that would benefit most by using the CRM Outlook plugin would be Sales. Sales people tend to use Outlook regularly throughout their working day, and the single user interface would therefore be beneficial to them. The ability to synchronise activities, track emails and create new contacts and accounts whilst using Outlook, enables the user to streamline their processes when executing a sales process.

#### **INTERNET EXPLORER CLIENT**

Function	Description
Speed	General navigation of the CRM system is a lot quicker through the Internet Explorer client.
Syncing of Data	Data is synchronised more regularly, whereas accessing through the Outlook plugin means that data in the CRM is only intermittently synchronised.
All Green 4 Modules available	All Green 4 modules are available. For example – the Green 4 email marketing tool is only available through the Internet Explorer client.



The screenshot below shows how CRM may appear when a user logs in through Internet Explorer:





## 2.2. CRM NAVIGATION

Microsoft Dynamics is designed to be used and react in a very similar way to other, maybe more familiar Microsoft software such as Word or Excel. CRM 2015 works with a drop down menu approach

The images below outlines the key areas of CRM 2015, a description of each area is provided below:



#### WORK AREA (1)

The work area displays information related to the menu option selected. The work area display will change depending on which area of CRM the user is working in. The information shown in the example below is of the Workplace area of CRM 2015. The Workplace page can be customised to a dashboard view relevant to the user.





#### **RIBBON (2)**

A ribbon sits above every work area that is opened in CRM 2015. The ribbon will update based upon the area of CRM the user is in. For example, navigating to contacts will display different ribbon buttons and tabs than when you navigate to Marketing lists. The purpose of the ribbon bar is to display the most common activities to users in relation to where they are in the system. The New button in the ribbon often appears and is selected when creating a New form.



#### **NAVIGATION BAR (3)**

The navigation bar on the top of CRM 2015 allows users to select a relevant tab for an area to work in by either clicking or hovering over the Microsoft Dynamics CRM heading in the left hand corner. Hovering over this heading displays the list of entities available to work in i.e. Sales, Product Management, and Venue Management etc. By selecting the small arrow on the far right of the list, it is possible to scroll across the list of entities available.

As you select an entity, the Navigation Bar displays the selection or breadcrumb trail of what has been selected. In the example below, the selection shows Workplace and Dashboards. This enables easy navigation back to a previous area.



Upon selecting the area that you are going to work in from the Navigation Bar, items related to that area will be displayed. For example, as shown below, by hovering over or clicking on Sales, all related items to Sales are displayed such as Leads, Opportunities, Accounts, and Contacts etc.





#### VIEWS

A view is a filter that can be applied to a list of records. Users can create and choose different views that contain all activities of a particular type. This allows users to change what data is displayed whilst working in different areas, this allows the user to quickly monitor information relevant to their role. The screen shot below provides an example of how different views can be selected:



An example when the view may need to be changed is if you want to see any deactivated Products, Fixtures or Series etc. This allows any deactivated forms to be viewed and potentially reactivated.

#### FORMS

When a record is opened in CRM (i.e. a Contact, Account, Bookable Products) an additional 'Form' is opened with more detailed content regarding the entity selected. The form functions in a similar way to the basic CRM interface and includes the Navigation Bar and the Ribbon. A New form is displayed each time New is selected in the ribbon, for example to create a new Contact, Bookable Product, Series or Fixture a new form will be displayed for information to be entered into. Below is an example of a CRM form:





To select related areas to that form, click on or hover over the small arrow next to the name of the form in the Navigation Bar as shown below. The Common related areas will display.

/// Microsoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 🏦   SALES 🗸 Contacts   🗸 Catherine Perryman 🔽							
Common							
Ê <b>*</b> ]		· ++	<b>H</b>	#	<b>H</b>		
ACTIVITIES CONNECTIONS	AUDIT HISTORY	COMMUNICATION ACTIVI	LOGIN AUDITS	IMPORTED ITEMS	ACCESS CONTROLS		

#### SAVING IN CRM

When you create a new form, you will have to save the record for the first time manually using the **Save** or **Save & Close** options in the ribbon. Once the record has been saved, auto save will begin and any changes made to the record will be saved every 30 seconds after a field has been modified. However it is still always possible to save a form at any time by selecting the small save icon that is displayed in the bottom right hand corner of every form.





# **3. ACCOUNT AND CONTACT MANAGEMENT**

## 3.1. WHAT IS A CONTACT?

The official Microsoft definition...

A person who represents a customer or potential customer, or an individual related to an account

Examples:

- An individual who has bought tickets from you
- An individual who has signed up for your club's e-newsletter
- The person you contact to discuss a local company sponsoring the team
- The school teacher you contact to discuss a school visit

Contacts as well as accounts are central to organisations and CRM and are used in conjunction with one another to create a 360 degree view of the customer. This data is vitally important to enable businesses to improve the quality and satisfaction of every customer interaction, maximising profitability of customer relationships.

It is therefore vitally important that the contact form is kept as up to date as possible. Organisations should have clear processes in place that provide users with an understanding of what data is required and the reasons why. All interactions with a contact should be tracked against it using activities and notes, and any opportunity to enhance contact data should be taken.

Below are some examples highlighting the importance of contact data quality in different areas of an organisation:

- A salesperson needs to contact a prospective client for Match day hospitality. Prior to contact the user should check the contact form to review previous notes or closed activities. This is to ensure that any complaints or important information isn't overlooked; as well as helping the salesperson have a better chance of selling hospitality.
- 2) A marketing manager wants to communicate via email with all fans who have purchased a ticket for a game at the weekend. If at the time of the sale, the ticket office assistant only took minimal contact information (i.e. last name and postal address), the marketing manager would not be able to communicate with this fan by email, and the message, that may have been vital in retaining the fans support, will be lost.

Below is a step by step guide to creating a new contact:

a) Select or hover over the Microsoft Dynamics CRM tab before clicking **Workplace** from the drop down list of the **Navigation Bar**.

	Microsoft Dynamics CRM	V 🔒 🛛 WORKPLACE V	Dashboards   🗸			() Create	System Administ	¢	?
	C WORKPLACE	sales	Marketing	ି LOYALTY	ී BOOKINGS	裔 PRODUCT MANAGEM	M VENUE MANAGEM	1ENT	>
L									^



b) Hover over the **Workplace** tab to display the related entities. Scroll across the drop down row of related areas and select **Contacts**.



c) The Contact View with the list of My Active Contacts will be displayed. Select New in the ribbon.

<i>▲</i> N	Microsoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 🏦   WORKPLACE 🗸 Contacts   🗸								
+	NEW 🛅 DELETE 🖙 🗋 COPY A LINK 🖙 🖘 E	Mail a link 🛛 👻 🖪 Run	REPORT 👻 🕼 EXPORT T	O EXCEL 🛛 🕞 IMPORT E					
Ħ	→ My Active Contacts								
$\checkmark$	Full Name 🛧	E-mail	Parent Customer	Business Phone					
	Amy Coote	C.Amy@g4.com	Beachwood School	0823461123					
	Andy King	Kingy@g4.co.uk	Frampton College	073671240					
	Annabelle Lane	A.Lane@g4.com	Stanley Moore Secondary	8333412					
	Catherine Perryman	catherine.perryman@gree	Green 4 Solutions						
	Charlotte Wright	R.Charlotte@g.4.com	Hill Field Primary School	2331234					
	Danny Drinkwater	D.Drinks@g4.co.uk	Huntington Primary School	0833724563					
	Elizabeth Atherton	L.Atherton@g4.com	Listers Secondary School	1458436					
	James Wall	James.Wall@green4solutio	Green 4 Solutions						

d) A blank **Contact Form** will be displayed. You must enter all of the mandatory fields (all fields with a red asterisk) and any fields marked with a blue cross are recommended fields but do not have to be completed. As the field is selected, an outline to the field will appear.

Ju Microsoft Dynamics CRM マ 🏫   WORKPLACE マ Contacts マ Ne	w Contact		(+) Create	System Administ 🛛 🔅
등 SAVE 립 SAVE & CLOSE 🕂 NEW 🗇 FORM				↑ ↓
New Contact				Owner* System Adm
Summary				
CONTACT INFORMATION	Eint Nama+		Company	
Full Name*	Last Name *	POST	-	
Job Title			RECENT CASES	
Parent Customer	Done		Case Title Priority ↑	Status 🛧 Created On
E-mail			To enable this content, create the record	
Business Phone				
Fax			RECENT OPPORTUNITIES	
Preferred Method of Any			Tania Casta A	Astual Class Da   Astual Revenue
Address			Topic Status m	Actual close Da Actual Revenue
NORTH ARDIE ANA				
http://www.bingmapsportal.com				
b ling B 2014 More A Gray man				
Details				
PERSONAL	MARKETING	BILLING		
Feeder	Odelector Lond	-	Devel Station	
Marital Status	Unginating Lead	Currency Credit Limit	Young stening	
Spouse/Partner Nam	Marketing Materials Send	Credit Hold	No	
Birthday		Payment Terms	-	
Anniversarv	CONTACT PREFERENCES			

e) Click Save and Close on the ribbon. The new contact is now saved in CRM.



## 3.2. WHAT IS AN ACCOUNT?

The official Microsoft definition...

Organisation or business to which the salesperson tries to sell a product or service. The company billed in business transactions.

Examples:

- The school who has provided team mascots
- The Company who have hired a hospitality suite for a match day
- The charity who you are supporting through community projects

In much the same way as contacts, gathering as much accurate information relating to an account is vital to ensuring an efficient and well informed approach to future interactions and again maximising the profitability of the relationship with an organisation.

Below is a step by step guide to creating a new account:

a) Select or hover over the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab before clicking **Workplace** from the drop down list of the **Navigation Bar**.



b) In the **Workplace** area of Microsoft CRM, select the **Workplace** tab in the Navigation Bar, scroll across the drop down row of related areas before selecting **Accounts**.

▲ Microsoft Dynamics CRM → 🔒 WORKPLACE →	Dashboards   🗸	Create go
ARTICLES REPORTS		퇴 또 INTACTS

c) The Account View will be displayed. Select New on the ribbon.

<i>▲</i> 4 N	灿 Microsoft Dynamics CRM ~ 🏦   WORKPLACE ~ Accounts   ~								
+ 1	NEW 🛅 DELETE 🔽 🗋 COPY A LINK 🔽 🖘 E	MAIL A LINK 🗐 🔻	RUN REPORT	<ul> <li>EXPORT TO EXCEL</li> </ul>	🕞 IMPORT DATA 🛛 👻 🚥				
→ My Active Accounts →									
$\sim$	Account Name 🛧	Main Phone	Address 1: City	Primary Contact	E-mail (Primary Contact)				
	Beachwood School	2739902	Beachwood	Amy Coote	C.Amy@g4.com				
	Frampton College	0923648	Frampton	Andy King	Kingy@g4.co.uk				
	Green 4 Solutions	08455 088 149	Lutterworth						
	Hill Field Primary School	0948239	Harborough	Neil Back	Back@green4solutions.com				
	Huntington Primary School	98451245	London	Danny Drinkwater	D.Drinks@g4.co.uk				
	Listers Secondary School	4562673	Lichfield	Elizabeth Atherton	L.Atherton@g4.com				
	Littlebrooke School	8926387	Leicester	Jamie Vardy	J.vardy@G4.com				
	Loftcape School	5357812	Derby	Rachel Mchugh	R.Mchugh@g4.com				
	Rockington College	073128532	Newbury	Michelle Harvey	HeadHarvey@g4.com				



d) An **Account Form** will be displayed. Again, you must enter all of the mandatory fields (all fields with a red asterisk) and any fields marked with a blue cross are recommended fields but do not have to be completed. As the field is selected, an outline to the field will appear.

Mu Microsoft Dynamics CRM + 🖬   WORKPLACE + Accounts +	New Account		🕀 Create	System Administ 🔽 🌣
🗔 SAVE 🛱 SAVE & CLOSE 🕂 NEW 回 FORM				ŶΨ
New Account			Annual Revenue 	No. of Employees Owner* System Admin
Summary				
ACCOUNT INFORMATION	POSTS ACTIVITIES NOTES		Primary Contact	
Account Name *	Enter post here	POST		
Phone	Both Auto posts User posts		CONTACTS	
Website	We didn't find any posts.		Full Name ↑ E-mail	
Parent Account			To enable this content, create the record.	
Ticker Symbol				
ADDRESS				
			RECENT OPPORTUNITIES	
ANDERS CONTRACTOR			Topic Status ↑ To enable this content, create the record.	Actual Close Da Actual Revenue Es
The specified credentials are invalid. You can sign up for a free developer account at http://www.bingmapsportal.com				
			RECENT CASES	
bing © 2014 Microsoft Corporation			Status Case Title	
			To enable this content, create the record.	
Details				
COMPANY PROFILE	MARKETING	BILLING		
Industry	Originating Lead	Currency Create Limit	Pound Sterling	
Ownership	Marketing Materials Send	Credit Limit Credit Hold	No	

e) Click **Save and Close** on the ribbon. The new account is now saved in **CRM**.



## **3.3. BUILDING RELATIONSHIPS**

Not every company or organisation is the same, and understanding the relationships and connections within an organisation can benefit sales and customer service. CRM allows users to build relationships between accounts and contacts, therefore allowing you to reflect the real-life relationships your organisation may encounter.

Linking contacts with accounts is vital for effective communication with contacts. For example, a **Primary Contact** for an account is likely to be the person who will make the decision regarding a sale, or the person to contact regarding a particular issue. By linking this contact to the account, the end user has all the information in one place and doesn't have to go searching through the system. When opening the **Primary Contact**, their role is easily visible – allowing the user to understand whether or not the contact is an appropriate recipient for your message.

Below is an example of how contacts may be linked to accounts:



Below is a step by step guide to creating a link between a **Contact** and an **Account**:

a) In the **Workplace** area of Microsoft CRM, select the **Workplace** tab in the Navigation Bar, scroll across the drop down row of related areas before selecting **Contacts**.



b) Select the view **Active Contacts** and search for the relevant contact using the search bar in the top right hand corner of the contact view.

<i>.</i> /44 IV	licrosoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 🛛 🏦 🕴 work	Contacts	~		⊕ <sub>Create</sub>	System Administ
+	NEW 💼 DELETE 💌 🗋 COPY A LINK 💌 🖘 B	email a link 👻 🗈 Run	N REPORT 👻 🚺 EXPORT 1	to excel 🔹 Import data 💌 🚥		
+	My Active Contacts 、				Search for records	ز
	Full Name 🛧	E-mail	Parent Customer	Business Phone		Ŧ
	Amy Coote	C.Amy@g4.com	Beachwood School	0823461123		
	Andy King	Kingy@g4.co.uk	Frampton College	073671240		
	Annabelle Lane	A.Lane@g4.com	Stanley Moore Secondary	8333412		



- c) Double click on the contact and the Contact form should appear.
- d) On the **Contact form** there will be a field called **Parent Customer**, click the **look up** button.

🚈 Microsoft Dynan	nics CRM 🗸 🏦   WORKPLACE 🗸 Co	ntacts   🗸 🛛 Catherine Perryman   🗸	(+) Create	<b>System Adminis</b> go	t	۵	?
+ NEW 🔓 DEACTIV	ATE CONNECT - ADD TO MARKETING			Ŷ	Ψ	я	
Contact + Catherine Perryman							
Summary							
CONTACT INFORMATI	ON	POSTS ACTIVITIES NOTES	Company				
Full Name*	Catherine Perryman	Enter post here POST					
Job Title	Project Manager	Both Auto posts User posts	RECENT CASES		+		
Parent Customer		Catherine Perryman	Case Title	Priority A	Status	•	
E-mail	catherine.perryman@green4solutions.com	Contact: Created By First name Last name.		, nong	otatos .	1.	
Business Phone		On Catherine Perryman's wall 24/10/2014 09:00	No Case records found.				
Mobile Phone	07889 600 276						
Fax							
Preferred Method of	E-mail						
Address			<			>	

- e) This will display a list of 10 Accounts. If the account that you would like the contact to be related to is displayed in this list select it. If not, select the **Look Up More Records** option, this will allow you to search for the relevant account you wish to associate the contact with.
- f) If the Account does not exist, select the + New icon and capture the Account details.

CONTACT INFORMATION	I		POST
Full Name*	Catherine Perryman		Enter
Job Title	Project Manager		Both
Parent Customer		Q	_
E-mail	Huntington Primary School 98451245	~	8
Business Phone	E Listers Secondary School		
Mobile Phone	4562673		
Fax	Littlebrooke School		
Preferred Method of			
Address	5357812		
AN AGEN	Rockington College HeadHarvey@g4.com 073128532		
AMERICA	Saunders College K.B@G4.com 08999234		
act -	Look Up More Records	~	
JP Pa	10 results + r	New	
The specified credent	als are invalid. You can sign up for a free		
developer account	t at http://www.bingmapsportal.com		

g) Once the account you wish to associate with this contact is found or added, select it and click **Add**.



Look for	Account	<b>~</b>	Show Only My Recor	ds
Look in	Account Lookup View	~		
Search	Search for records	Q		
Ac	ount Name		Email	0
✓ Gre	en 4 Solutions			~
Hil	Field Primary School			
Bei	achwood School			
Fra	mpton College			
Hu	ntington Primary School			
1.14	lebrooke School			
				~
Liu Ch-	alari Masara Casaradan (Cabara)			
Sta	nley Moore Secondary School			>

- h) You will be automatically returned to the **Contact form**, and the **Parent Account** field should now have the appropriate account occupied.
- i) Click **Save**.

Below is a step by step guide to creating a link between an **Account** and a **Primary Contact**:

a) In the **Workplace** area of Microsoft CRM, select the **Workplace** tab in the Navigation Bar, scroll across the drop down row of related areas before selecting **Accounts**.

▲ Microsoft Dynamics CRM → 🔒 WORKPLACE →	Dashboards   •	(Create	System Administ 📿 🔅 ? go
ARTICLES EPORTS		¥	

b) Select the view **Active Accounts** and search for the relevant contact using the search bar in the top right hand corner of the contact view.

44 1	Aicrosoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 👘 🕴 work	(PLACE ~ Ac	counts   🗸			() Create	<b>System Administ</b> go	0	۵
+	NEW 🛅 DELETE 🔻 🗋 COPY A LINK 💌 🖘 (	EMAIL A LINK 🛛 🔻	RUN REPORT	<ul> <li>EXPORT TO EXCEL</li> </ul>	🕞 IMPORT DATA 🛛 👻 🚥				
+	My Active Accounts -					1			ρ
~	Account Name 🔨	Main Phone	Address 1: City	Primary Contact	E-mail (Primary Contact)			Ŧ	e
-	Beachwood School	2739902	Beachwood	Amy Coote	C.Amy@g4.com				
	Frampton College	0923648	Frampton	Andy King	Kingy@g4.co.uk				
	Green 4 Solutions	08455 088 149	Lutterworth						6
	Hill Field Primary School	0948239	Harborough	Neil Back	Back@green4solutions.com				

- c) Double click on the Account and the Account form should appear.
- d) On the Account form there will be a field called Primary Contact, click the look up button.

🌆 Microsoft Dynam	nics CRM 🗸 🏦   Workplace 🗸 Ad	counts   🗸 Green 4 Solutions   🗸		⊕ Create	System Administ. go	- 0	۵	?
+ NEW 🔓 DEACTIVA	ATE 🛛 🕹 CONNECT 🛛 🖛 ADD TO MARKETING	LIST 🚔 ASSIGN 🗢 EMAIL A LINK 🗙 DELETE \cdots				↑	<b>1</b>	лī
Gree	Green 4 Solutions					<sup>Owner*</sup> <u>System</u>	Adm	ini
Summary								_ ^
ACCOUNT INFORMATI	ON	POSTS ACTIVITIES NOTES		Primary Contact				
Account Name *	Green 4 Solutions	Enter post here	POST					
Phone	08455 088 149	Both Auto posts User posts		CONTACTS		+		



e) This will display a list of active Contacts. If the account that you would like the contact to be related to is displayed in this list select it, if not, choose the **Look Up More Records** option. This will allow you to search for the relevant account you wish to associate the contact with.

Primary Contact	Q
Catherine Perryman Green 4 Solutions	
James Wall Green 4 Solutions	
Jenny Murphy Green 4 Solutions	
Joe Walker Green 4 Solutions	
Look Up More Records	
4 results	+ New

f) Search for the Contact you wish to associate with this Account, select it and click Add.

Look for	Contact				
LOOK TOP	Contact	~	s	how Only My Records	
Look in	Active Contacts	~	F	ilter by related Parent Custo	mer
Search	Search for records	Q			
Fu	I Name ↑			E-mail	4
✓ An	ny Coote			C.Amy@g4.com	
An	dy King			Kingy@g4.co.uk	
An	nabelle Lane			A.Lane@g4.com	
Ca	therine Perryman			catherine.perryman@gre	e
Ch	arlotte Wright			R.Charlotte@g.4.com	
Da	nny Drinkwater			D.Drinks@g4.co.uk	
Eli	zabeth Atherton			L.Atherton@q4.com	
1 - 22	of 22 (1 selected)			-  ∉ ∉ Pag	e 1 ▶

- g) You will be automatically returned to the **Account form**, and the Primary Contact field should now have the appropriate contact occupied.
- h) Click **Save**.

To add a contact that isn't the Primary Contact:

a) With the **Account Form** open, find the **Contacts** field which has a small table beneath it. If any contacts have already been related to this Account, the names of these will be displayed in the table.

CONTACTS	+ 🗉
Full Name 个	E-mail
Catherine Perryman	catherine.perryman@gr
James Wall	James.Wall@green4sol
Jenny Murphy	Jenny.Murphy@green4
Joe Walker	joe.walker@green4solu



b) To add a new Contact to the Account select the Plus symbol.

CONTACTS	+ 🗉
Full Name 个	E-mail
Catherine Perryman	catherine.perryman@gr
James Wall	James.Wall@green4sol
Jenny Murphy	Jenny.Murphy@green4
Joe Walker	joe.walker@green4solu

c) A smaller Contact form will drop down, complete the relevant details before selecting Save.

⁄ Microsoft Dyna	mics CRM 🗸 👘   work	PLACE - Accounts -	Green 4 Solutions	v	(+) Create	Sys go	tem Administ		¢‡ ?
Contact									×
Details			Contact Information		Address				
First Name <sup>+</sup>			E-mail		Street 1	16-17 Midland C	ourt		
Last Name *			Mobile Phone		Street 2	Central Park			
Job Title			Business Phone	08455 088 149	City	Lutterworth			
Parent Customer	Green 4 Solutions		Description		ZIP/Postal Code	LE17 4PN			
							Save	Ca	ancel

d) A new Contact has been created and this new contact is now assigned to the Account.



# **4. ACTIVITIES**

Businesses and organisations interact with their customers through different channels using different techniques. Phone calls, emails, and general tasks are a part of everyday business processes. A key benefit of a CRM system is that everyday interactions can be recorded and tracked against the relevant contact or account. This is done through the Activity Management functionality in CRM. Activities allow users to record and schedule everyday interactions with their clients. These activities can be used to remind a user of a certain task, or to assign an activity to another user. Logging interactions with customers through the activity management tool also allows other users to see the most recent activities assigned to an account or contact, benefitting the user who may be contacting the customer.

## **4.1. MY ACTIVITIES**

My activities is the area where a user can find all of the activities assigned to them. My activities will automatically open as soon as Activities is selected from the workplace area of CRM. Below is a step by step guide to creating a new activity:

a) Select or hover over the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab before clicking **Workplace** from the drop down list of the **Navigation Bar**.

Microsoft Dynamics CRM	I 🗸 🔒   WORKPLACE ∽	Dashboards   🗸			(Create	System Administ 🔤 🔅 ?
C WORKPLACE	SALES	Marketing	الله LOYALTY	個 BOOKINGS	A PRODUCT MANAGEM	M → VENUE MANAGEMENT
						^

b) In the **Workplace** area of Microsoft CRM, select the **Workplace** tab in the Navigation Bar, from the drop down list of related areas select **Activities**.

🚧 Microsoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 🏦 🛛 🗰	KPLACE - Activities -		(Create	System Administ 🛛 🔅 ? go
My Work				
			Ē	
DASHBOARDS ACTIVITIES	CALENDAR	IMPORTS – DUPLICATE DETECTION	QUEUES	ARTICLES

c) The **Activities View** will be displayed. On the ribbon will be a number of activity options (Task, email, phone call etc.) Click in the activity you wish to create.

Micros	soft Dynai	mics CRM 🗸	<b>f</b>	WORKPLACE ~	Activitie	es   🗸		
🗹 TASK	M EMAIL	APPOINTMEN	r   <del>•</del>	<b>\$</b> PHONE CALL	🗐 LETTER	ر 🗳 FAX	😂 SERVICE ACTIVITY	•••

d) An Activity Form relating to your activity type will be displayed. Enter as much information as possible. The below example shows the activity type form of Phone Call.



雄 Microsoft Dynai	mics CRM 🗸 🏦   WORKPLACE 🖌 Activities   🗸 Call Trudi to confir   🗸	
✓ MARK COMPLETE	🗙 CLOSE PHONE CALL 📱 CONVERT TO 👻 🗙 DELETE 🖘 EMAIL A LINK 🗐 FORM 🖓 ASSIGN 🚥	
	di ta anafirma availabilit. fan 15th Daaraa	riority
Call Truc	al to confirm availability for 15th Deceme	lormal
Subject * Call From *	Call Trudi to confirm availability for 15th Decemeber	
Call To *	Special Events	
Phone Number	07814452800 Direction Outgoing	
Description		
Call Trudi to confirm av	vailability for the 15th December	
Duration	30	
Datation		

- e) Click Save and Close on the ribbon. The new activity is now saved in CRM.
- f) To close an activity as complete, on the **ribbon**, select **Mark Complete** on the ribbon. This will identify the activity as Closed (requiring no further action).

Micros	soft Dynamics CR	M → 🔒   wo	ORKPLACE ~	Activities   🗸	New Phone Call
🔒 SAVE	✓ MARK COMPLETE	😭 SAVE & CLOSE	E FORM		

g) To link the activity to a particular contact or account, select the lookup on the **Regarding** field.

Regarding	TO results		Q
		8926387	~
	Ex Littleterete School	4562673	
	Huntington Primary School	98451245	
Description	Hill Field Primary School	0948239	
Phone Number	Green 4 Solutions	08455 088 149	
Call To *	Frampton College	0923648	
Subject * Call From *	Beachwood School	2739902	^

- h) Search for the record you wish to assign the task to from either the list of records that automatically display or select Look Up More Records from the drop down list. Select the record and click OK.
- i) This will return you to the Activity Form, where you can Save.

In much the same way as contacts and accounts, it is important to be as detailed as possible when completing an activity. The activity may be opened by another user who may be communicating with the contact or account that the activity is related to.



# **5. ADVANCED FIND**

Advanced find is a tool in Microsoft Dynamics allows users to look up data based criteria important to them. The tool allows you to search on multiple fields in the primary record type, as well as multiple fields within a related record.

For example, if a user wanted to search for a contact that had the last name 'Smith', they would look for contacts that had the last name 'Smith' and the query would look like this:

							Microsoft Dyn	amics CRM	System Administrator 📀
FILE	ADVAN	CED FIND							go a
Query	Saved Views	Results	New	Save	Gave As Edit Columns Edit Properties	2 Clear	[佳 Group AND [佳 Group OR 글 Details	Download Fetch XML	
	Show				lew		Query	Debug	
Look	for: Conta	cts				ν ι	Jse Saved View:	[new]	×
• 	<u>Last Name</u>			<u>Equals</u>	i	Smith			

This query would return all contacts that had the last name 'Smith'.

By adding a **related** field, the user can search the content of a related record form. For example, if a user wanted to find out if any of the contacts were associated with an account where the City field on the account was 'Lutterworth', a related field would need to be added to the query:

								Microsoft Dyna	amics CRM		System Administrator 💡
FI	LE	ADVA	NCED FINI	D							go 😞
Qu	lery	Saved Views	Results	New	Save	Edit Columns	2 Clear	[문 Group AND [문 Group OR 글 Details	Download XML	Fetch	
		Show				View		Query	Debug	)	
Lo	ok f	or: Cont	acts				$\checkmark$	Use Saved View:	[new]		V
	¥	Last Nam	e		<u>Equal</u> :	ž	<u>Smit</u>	h			
		<u>Select</u>									
	۲	Parent C	ustomer (/	Account)							
		✓ <u>Addr</u>	ess 1: City	L	<u>Ec</u>	quals	L	utterworth			
		Selec	<u>t</u>								
	[	Selec	<u>t</u>	<u>E</u>	<u></u>	10012	-				

By doing this, the advanced find will return all the contacts with last name 'Smith' and by adding the related field – the advanced find will then search on the Account form to return the contacts associated with an account that has a City of 'Lutterworth'. This is possible when the relationship between the two contacts already exists.



## 5.1. RUNNING AN ADVANCED FIND

To run an Advanced Find in Microsoft CRM:

- a) In order to run an advanced find, go to the entity you want to search on (In this example we will search for contacts, therefore select **Contacts** from the **Navigation Bar**).
- b) Select the **Advanced Find** button on the ribbon. This is found by clicking on the more commands symbol as demonstrated below.

🍐 Microsoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 🖬 🛛	WORKPLACE ~ Contacts	<b>~</b>			🕀 Crea
+ NEW	🖘 EMAIL A LINK 🛛 🔻 💽 RU	JN REPORT 👻 🗐 EXPORT	TO EXCEL 🛛 🕞 IMPORT DATA 🛛 🛩	Advanced Find	► 5
✓ Full Name 个	E-mail	Parent Customer	Business Phone	The New Sustan View	
Amy Coote	C.Amy@g4.com	Beachwood School	0823461123	Di c. i. i. s. ii	
Andy King	Kingy@g4.co.uk	Frampton College	073671240	Customize Entity	
Annabelle Lane	A.Lane@g4.com	Stanley Moore Secondary	8333412	System Views	

c) The Advanced Find form will be displayed. Select the Details menu option.

FILE	ADVANCED FIND			Microsoft Dyna	mics CRM	System Administrator 😵
Query	Saved Results Views	New Save	Gave As Columns Edit Columns Edit Properties View	(E Group AND (E Group OR Clear Query	Download Fetch XML Debug	
Look for	Contacts			✓ Use Saved View:	Active Contacts	V
✓ <u>St</u>	tatus	Equ	als	Active		
<u>Se</u>	elect					

d) Next, in the **Look For** drop down menu choose what the Advanced Find is to search for before choosing in the **Use Saved View** drop down an appropriate view. In this example as we are searching for contacts select Look For - Contacts and Use Saved View - Active Contacts.

FILE	ADVANCE	ed find	)				Microsoft Dyn	amics CRM	System Administrator go 😞
Query	Saved Re Views	esults	New	Save	☐ Save As ☑ Edit Columns ☑ Edit Properties View	Q Cle	[{≣ Group AND [{≣ Group OR ar ⊡ Details Query	Download Fetch XML Debug	
<b>Look fo</b> State	or: Contact us Equals <u>A</u>	ts Active				~	Use Saved View:	Active Contacts	×

e) The Advanced Find dialog will be updated as shown below. The search parameters to the view will be automatically added but may differ depending on what you are searching for. In this instance one parameter is automatically listed: **Status Equals Active**. This means that if the Results button was selected now, all active contacts would be searched for and found.



							Microsoft Dyna	mics CRM	System Administrator 🕜
FILE	ADVA	NCED FIN	D						90 A
Query	Saved Views	Results	New	Save	Edit Columns	2 Clear	[뜸 Group AND [뜸 Group OR 글 Details	Download Fetch XML	
	Show				view		Query	Debug	
Look fo	or: Cont	acts				<ul><li>✓</li></ul>	Use Saved View:	Active Contacts	$\checkmark$
× :	<u>Status</u>			<u>Equal</u> :	5	Active	<u>.</u>		
	<u>Select</u>								

f) To add additional parameters, to narrow the search click Select (highlighted in the below image)

FILE	ADVANCED FIN	D				Microsoft Dyr	amics CRM	System Administrator 😵 go 💩
Query	Saved Results Views	New	Save	Save As Edit Columns Edit Properties /iew	2 Clear	[E Group AND [E Group OR 글 Details Query	Download Fetch XML Debug	
Look fo	or: Contacts				~	Use Saved View:	Active Contacts	<b>&gt;</b>
	<u>Status</u> Select		<u>Equals</u>		<u>Active</u>	<u>e</u>		

- g) A list of fields you can search for will be displayed. The list is divided into two section:
  - **Fields.** The top section of the list shows the fields that are part of the record type you are currently searching on. In this example we can see all the fields that form part of a contacts record.
  - **Related.** The bottom section of the list shows all of the entities that are related to the current record type. So in this example we see a list of all record types that are related to a contact.

To use a Field name from the list:

h) Select the appropriate field name from the list. A new row will be added to the Advanced Find as is shown below. In this example I have chosen birthday. In the middle drop down I am able to select what the Advanced Find should search for in relation to the birthday, various options can be chosen. Depending on what field has been chosen, different options will be displayed to search for.

FILE	ADVA	NCED FINI	D				Microsoft Dyn	amics CRM	System Administrator 🕜 go 🛆
Quer	y Saved Views Show	Results	New	Save	Edit Columns	2 Clea	[t≣ Group AND [t≣ Group OR r ⊡ Details Query	Download Fetch XML Debug	
Look	for: Cont	acts				~	Use Saved View:	Active Contacts	×
	✓ <u>Status</u> Equals     ✓ On     Select			<u>Acti</u>	<u>ve</u> ose Date				

i) Any further fields can be searched for by again choosing **Select** and the above process can be repeated to narrow down your Advanced Find.



- j) Once all of your search criteria has been selected, click **Results** in the ribbon. A list of records meeting the conditions entered will be displayed.
- k) To return to the search terms, select the **Advanced Find** tab heading (highlighted below). The search item previously entered will be redisplayed allowing you to modify the details.

	LIST TOOLS	Microsoft Dynamics CRM
FILE ADVANCED FIND	CONTACTS	
New Contact Records	Send Direct Add Email	to Marketing Quick Campaign - Collaborate
✓ Full Name ↑		E-mail Parent
Adam Smith		apsmith 87@hotmail.com
Adam Smith		adam@green4solutions.com
Amy Coote		C.Amy@g4.com Beachw
Andrew Duncan		and rew@green4 solutions
Annabelle Lane		A.Lane@g4.com Stanley
Barbara Green		B.Green@gmail.com
Catherine Perryman		catherine.perryman@gree Green 4
Chris Theodorson		chris.theodorson@green4s
David Powell		david.powell@green4solut

To use a **Related field** from the list.

 Select the appropriate record type from the related section of the list. A new row will be added to the Advanced Find as shown below. This row will be coloured blue to indicate that it is a related record type. In this example, the related field of **Payment Mandate** has been chosen.

							Microsoft Dyna	mics CRM	System Administrator 🕜
FILE	ADVAN	ICED FINI	D						go a
Queŋ	Saved Views	Results	New	Save	Edit Properties	2 Clear	[문 Group AND [문 Group OR 글 Details Query	Download Fetch XML Debug	
Look	for: Cont	acts				<b>∨</b> ι	Use Saved View:	Active Contacts	` 
~	<u>Status</u>			Equals	i	Active	1		
~	<u>Birthday</u>			<u>On or</u>	After	<u>09/03</u>	/1900		
	Select								
~	<u>Payment</u>	Mandate	s (Contact	)					
						~			

- m) To set a search term based on the related entity, click **Select** below the blue related row. A list of fields will be displayed and as before the list will be divided into two section.
  - Fields. The fields section will list all of the fields from the related record
  - **Related.** The related section will list all of the record types that are related to the current record type.
- n) Select the appropriate field or related item from the list. A new row will be added to the Advanced Find dialog. Complete the details of the new row as required, this will differ depending on what has been selected. As can be seen below Bank Name has been chosen from the list of Fields in this example.



							Microsoft Dyn	amics CRM	System Administrator 😗
FILE	ADVA	NCED FINI	D						 وہ ۵
Quer	y Saved Views	Results	New	Save	<ul> <li>☐ Save As</li> <li>☑ Edit Columns</li> <li>☑ Edit Properties</li> </ul>	2 Clear	(븝 Group AND (딉 Group OR 글 Details	Download Fetch XML	
	Show			1	/iew		Query	Debug	
Look	for: Cont	acts				<b>~</b>	Use Saved View:	Active Contacts	V
- v	<u>Status</u>			Equals	i.	Active	1		
~	<u>Birthday</u>			<u>On or</u>	After	09/03/1900			
	Select								
~	Payment	Mandate	s (Contact	)					
Ē	∨ <u>Bank</u>	Name		Ec	quals	Sa	ntander		
	Selec	t							

- o) To view the results of your search, click **Results** on the ribbon. A list of records meeting the conditions will be displayed. Therefore in this example, the results will show all contacts whose birthdays are on or after 09/03/1900 and have a Payment Mandate created with a Bank Name of Santander.
- p) It is possible to export the contacts that have been gained from your Advanced Find results by exporting them to Excel via the **Export to Excel** button on the ribbon.

		LIST TOOLS		44 Microsoft Dynamics CRM						System Administrator 🕜			
FILE	ADVANCED FIND	CONTACTS										90 A	
New Contact	Edit V F	Send Direct Add Email	to Marketing List	Quick Campaign -	Mail Merge	★ Unfollow	Assign Contacts	<ul> <li>Share</li> <li>Copy a Link</li> <li>Email a Link</li> </ul>	Run Workflow	Start Dialog	Run Report -	Export Contacts	
	Records				Collaborate				Proce	255	Da	ita	

## **5.2. EXAMPLES OF ADVANCED FIND SEARCHES**

There are many different ways that Advanced Finds can be used to find important data related to your needs. Below demonstrates a number of Advanced Finds that are commonly used:



**Note.** The examples shown below are all dependant on how the setup of the system has been completed and therefore may differ between setups.

a) All Active Season Ticket Holders. This advanced find enables you to find all contact information related to every Active Season Ticket Holder on your system.

File Advanced Find				
Query Saved Results New Show	Save As Save Edit Columns Edit Properties View		Download Fetch XML Debug	
Look for: Seat Allocations		~	Use Saved View:	[new]
✓ Series	<u>Equals</u>	2014/15 SEASON		
Select				
▼ Booking				
	Equals	Active;Reserved		
Select				



b) The Number of Season Ticket Holders in each block.

	- 20	ow	VICW	Query	Jebag			
Look	for:	Seat Allocations				~	Use Saved View:	Number of season ticket holders in each block
	<u>Sele</u>	<u>et</u>						
-	<u>Seri</u>	es						
	•	Series	Equals	League 2013-2014				
		Select						
-	Boo	king						
	•	Booking Status	Equals	Active;Reserved				
		Select						
	-	Booking Products (Booking)						
		<u>Select</u>						
		<ul> <li><u>Product Variant</u></li> </ul>						
		<u>Select</u>						
		Bookable Product						
		▼ <u>Type</u>	Equals	Series				
		Select						

c) Number of seat moves into a particular block for a certain fixture.

Look for: Seat Allocations			V	Use Saved View: Number of seat moves into Block X for Fixture X
Original Seat Allocation	Contains Data			
	Equals	Bristol City v Crewe Alexan		
■ Block	Equals	WEDLOCK STAND: WEDLOC		
Select				
<ul> <li><u>Booking</u></li> </ul>				
→ Booking Status	Equals	Active		
Select				
<ul> <li>Booking Products (Book</li> </ul>	<u>cing)</u>			
Select				
Product Variant				
Select				
<ul> <li>Bookable Produ</li> </ul>	<u>et</u>			
▼ <u>Type</u>	Equals	Fixture		
Select				

## **5.3. SAVING AND SHARING AN ADVANCED FIND**

Once you have created an Advanced Find you can save the criteria for future use. For example if you create an Advanced Find to identify bookings for a particular fixture, you can save the search details, and then when you need to report on the next fixture, you can re-use the search once you have adjusted the fixture name.

To save and share an Advance Find view complete the following:

a) On the Advanced Find tab with the search terms visible, select Save As from the ribbon.

FILE	ADVAN	ICED FINE	>				Microsoft Dyna	mics CRM	System Administrator g° 😞
Query	Saved Views	Results	New	Save	Edit Columns	2 Clear	[{≣ Group AND [{≣ Group OR ➡ Details	Download Fetch XML	
	Show			١	/iew		Query	Debug	

b) Choose an appropriate name and click **Save**. The view will be saved and can be accessed from the dropdown below the ribbon on the Advanced Find dialog.

Save as new View The view is stored in the list of saved views.	×
Name *	
Description	
Save	Cancel



c) To Share your view with other users, select **Saved Views** from the ribbon of the **Advanced Find** Form.



- d) Select the view you wish to share, and select **Share** from the ribbon.
- e) A new window will open; select **Add user/team** from the navigational panel on the left of the form.
- f) Add the user(s) you wish to share with and click **OK**.
- g) Select the relevant permissions you wish the user to have, and click OK



# 6. MARKETING LISTS

The Marketing List option allows you to create either a **static** or **dynamic** list of contacts, accounts or leads.

A **dynamic** Marketing List will update whenever the data in CRM does. For example, if a dynamic Marketing List is set up with all contacts with an email addresses added, if there was an import of 5,000 additional contacts with email addresses – they would automatically be added to the Marketing List.

**Static** Marketing Lists work in the opposite way to dynamic lists. Once the group has been created, they will not update, regardless of the data in CRM.

Marketing Lists utilise the Advanced Find functionality within CRM:

- Advanced queries can be executed to extract a certain segment of members
- Queries (views) can be saved and shared with other users
- Lookups can be used to add particular members
- Advanced find can be used to remove and evaluate members in the list

A group of contacts in a marketing list can be used in campaigns. For example, a Marketing List may be created with the end goal of targeting these particular contacts with a telesales campaign. The marketing list can be assigned to this campaign and a list of phone calls generated against the contacts. Marketing lists can also be added to email marketing audiences in order to distribute email campaigns. Members captured by the Marketing List can also be exported to Excel, which may be important if the data requires cleansing.

## 6.1. CREATING A MARKETING LIST

To create a Marketing List:

a) Select or hover over the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab before clicking **Marketing** from the drop down list of the **Navigation Bar**.

Microsoft Dynamics CRM	1 🗸 💼   WORKPLACE 🗸	Dashboards   🗸			(+) Create	System Administ 🦳 🔅 ?
C WORKPLACE	<b>کہ</b> SALES		الله LOYALTY	通 BOOKINGS	個 PRODUCT MANAGEM	Image: A state of the state

b) In the **Marketing** area of Microsoft CRM, select the **Marketing List** tab in the Navigation Bar, from the drop down list of related areas select **Marketing Lists**.



c) The Marketing Lists View will be displayed. Select **New** on the ribbon.



🚈 Microsoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 👘 🕴 макк	KETING 🗸 Marketing Lists 🛛 🗸
🕇 NEW 🟛 DELETE 🖙 🗋 COPY A LINK 🖙 🖘 B	EMAIL A LINK 👻 🗈 RUN REPORT 👻 🕅 EXPORT TO EXCEL 🝺 IMPORT DATA 👻 🚥
➡ My Active Marketing Lists	; ~
Name 个	Type Marketing List M Last Used On Purpose

d) The Marketing Lists Form will be displayed. Enter a Name for the list before selecting the Member Type, Type of Marketing List and who the marketing list is to be Targeted At. Select Save on the ribbon.

hicroso 🕼	it Dynamics CRM 🗸 🏦   MARKETING 🗸 Marketing Lists   🗸 Dragon Bay Marketi	<b>~</b>	① Create	System Administ 📿 🌣 ? go
+ NEW [	🖇 DEACTIVATE 🛙 DELETE 🐁 MANAGE MEMBERS 🍰 ASSIGN 🗘 SHARE 🖘 EMAIL A LINK 🚥			↑ ↓ ज
MARKETING	LIST : INFORMATION 🔻			
Drac	on Bay Marketing List			
General				
General				
Name *	Dragon Bay Marketing List	Targeted At * 🔒 C	Contact	
Type *	Static Static	Is Members List N	lo	
Purpose				
Source		Is Subscription	-	
Currency	Pound Sterling	Modified On 🔒 1	7/03/2015 10:42	
Cost	-			
Locked	No	Last Used On 🔒	-	
		Owner*	System Administrator	
Description				
Description				

e) Select the small arrow next to the marketing list's name in the Navigation Bar. This will display the Marketing List's common related areas. Select **Marketing List Members**. This will allow you to control who is to be a part of the Marketing List.

Microsoft Dynamics CRM	✓ ♠   MARKETING ✓	Marketing Lists 🛛 🗸 🛛 [	Dragon Bay Marketi 🗸
Common			
	<b>*</b> 1		
MARKETING LIST MEMBERS	CONNECTIONS	AUDIT HISTORY	COMMUNICATION AUDIE

f) Select Manage Members on the ribbon.





- g) Use the **Manage Members** dialog to add members to the list. There are a number of ways to add members, it is possible to:
  - Add using Lookup. Select if you would like to simply add contacts to the Marketing List.
  - Add Using Advanced Find. Select if you would like to add contacts to the Marketing List based on a certain search criteria.

The Manage Members dialogue also allows members to be removed from the Marketing List:

- **Removing using Advanced Find.** Select if you would like to remove contacts from the Marketing List based on a certain search criteria.
- **Evaluate using Advanced Find.** Select if you would like to evaluate which contacts to keep in the Marketing List based on a certain search criteria. This can be used to update the Marketing List.

Manage Members × Choose how you want to find customers, and then add or remove these as members to the marketing list.
<ul> <li>Add using Lookup</li> <li>Find members to add to marketing list.</li> <li>Add using Advanced Find</li> <li>Find members to add based on search criteria.</li> <li>Remove using Advanced Find</li> <li>Find members to remove based on search criteria.</li> <li>Evaluate using Advanced Find</li> <li>Evaluate which members to keep in the marketing list based on search criteria. Update the marketing list.</li> </ul>
Continue

h) Once the list is complete, select **Save.** 



# 7. REPORTING

There are a number of built in reports within CRM that allow users and organisations to build detailed analysis on general performance. Example reports include reporting on the effectiveness of a communication, measuring sales performance, evaluating the quality of contact or account data, etc. Reporting is vitally important for organisations and provides the ability to feedback on areas such as profitability and ROI. Line managers may also wish to run reports to measure performance of their staff. In addition to the standard CRM reports, reports can be modified and built through the reports wizard.

## 7.1. ACCESSING REPORTS

- a) Select or hover over the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab before clicking **Workplace** from the drop down list of the **Navigation Bar**.
- b) In the **Workplace** area of Microsoft CRM, select the **Workplace** tab in the Navigation Bar. From the drop down list of related areas select **Reports**.
- c) A list of Available Reports will be shown:

세 Mi	crosoft Dynamics CRM 🗸 🛛 🏦 🕴 worкi	PLACE ~ Repo	rts   🗸		🕀 Create	System Administ go	Ч	۵
+ N	EW 🟛 DELETE 💌 🗋 COPY A LINK 💌 🖘 EN	MAILA LINK 👻 Í	EXPORT TO EXCE	L 🖡 IMPORT DATA 🔍 👗 ADVANCED FIND 🚥			· · ·	т
								•
-	Available Reports ~				Search for records			ρ
	•							
<u> </u>	Name 🛧	Report Type	Modified On	Description			Ŧ	С
· ·	Account Distribution	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:13	Identify patterns in top revenue-gen				^
· ·	Account Overview	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:13	View a one-page overview of an acco				
-	Account Summary	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:13	View a chronological summary of an				
< ►	Active Memberships	Reporting Servic	02/03/2015 16:12	View active memberships				
	Activities	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:14	Display a list of activities.				
•	Away Ticket Sales	Reporting Servic	02/03/2015 16:12	Away Ticket Sales Report				
	Campaign Activity Status	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:13	Track campaign activities.				
	Campaign Comparison	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:13	Compare two campaigns.				
	Campaign Performance	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:13	Track the progress and status of cam				
	Case Summary Table	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:13	View the patterns in cases.				
•	Competitor Win Loss	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:13	Compare how your sales team perfor				
	Contacts On Hold	Reporting Servic	02/03/2015 16:12					
	Cross Sell Products	Reporting Servic	02/03/2015 16:12	To display cross sell products				
•	Green 4 Contact Summary	Reporting Servic	29/09/2014 15:12					
•	Invoice	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:14	View an invoice and its line items.				
•	Invoice Status	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:13	View your accounts receivable.				
•	Lead Source Effectiveness	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:13	Compare your lead sources.				
	Meal Deal	Reporting Servic	02/03/2015 16:12					
•	Neglected Accounts	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:13	Identify accounts that have not been				
	Neolected Cases	Reporting Servic	25/10/2014 03:13	Identify cases that have not been con				~

- d) To run a report, double click on the relevant report.
- e) The report will open.

Some reports will not require any criteria to be selected and will instantly generate. For other reports the Report Filtering Criteria view will be displayed. This allows specific criteria to be shown on the report which can be selected from the drop down. Upon filtering the criteria or if no criteria needs to be changed, select the **Run Report** button.



e				@Help •		
Report Filtering Criteria						
Campaigns						
🞦 Clear 🛛 🚺 Group AND 📑 🚺 Group C	DR .					
✓ Campaign Equals	Enter Value					
	~					
			Ru	in Report Close		
ile						@ <u>H</u> el
	5.0 ×				л	
📲 🖣 1 🛛 🖉 of 1 🕑	▶	<u> </u>	Find Next	🛃 🔹 😳 👔		
Cross Sell Pro	ducts Penort					
Cross Sell Pro	ducts Report					
Cross Sell Pro	ducts Report	Туре	Price	Category		
Cross Sell Pro Original Product SL - Heli-Ski - Classic Package	ducts Report Swap Product SL - Heli-Ski - Classic Package inc Transfers	Type Adult	Price £925.00	Category Heli-ski		
Cross Sell Pro Original Product SL - Heli-Ski - Classic Package Admission - Single Pass	Aducts Report Swap Product SL - Heli-Ski - Classic Package inc Transfers Admission - Annual Pass	Type Adult Adult	Price £925.00 £100.00	Category Heli-ski Admission		
Cross Sell Pro Original Product SL - Heli-Ski - Classic Package Admission - Single Pass Admission - Single Pass	Aducts Report Swap Product SL - Heli-Ski - Classic Package inc Transfers Admission - Annual Pass Admission - Annual Pass	Type Adult Adult Child	Price £925.00 £100.00 £35.00	Category Heli-ski Admission Admission		
Cross Sell Pro Original Product SL - Heli-Ski - Classic Package Admission - Single Pass Admission - Single Pass Admission - Single Pass	Aducts Report Swap Product SL - Heli-Ski - Classic Package inc Transfers Admission - Annual Pass Admission - Annual Pass Admission - Annual Pass	Type       Adult       Adult       Child       Family 2+2	Price £925.00 £100.00 £35.00 £250.00	Category Heli-ski Admission Admission		
Cross Sell Pro Original Product SL - Heli-Ski - Classic Package Admission - Single Pass Admission - Single Pass Admission - Single Pass Admission - Single Pass	Aducts Report Swap Product SL - Heli-Ski - Classic Package inc Transfers Admission - Annual Pass Admission - Annual Pass Admission - Annual Pass Admission - Annual Pass	Type       Adult       Adult       Child       Family 2+2       Infant	Price £925.00 £100.00 £35.00 £250.00 £20.00	Category Heli-ski Admission Admission Admission		
Cross Sell Pro Original Product SL - Heli-Ski - Classic Package Admission - Single Pass Admission - Single Pass Admission - Single Pass Admission - Single Pass Admission - Single Pass	Aducts Report Swap Product SL - Heli-Ski - Classic Package inc Transfers Admission - Annual Pass Admission - Annual Pass Admission - Annual Pass Admission - Annual Pass Admission - Annual Pass	Type       Adult       Adult       Child       Family 2+2       Infant       Senior	Price £925.00 £100.00 £35.00 £250.00 £250.00 £35.00	Category Heli-ski Admission Admission Admission Admission		



# 8. DASHBOARDS

To quickly access data, dashboards can be used to allow easy and quick reference to relevant data. From the dashboard, users can quickly identify and access data relevant to their job role, for example, if you were a sales manager you may wish to have a view that details all open leads, a view that lists all open activities and a chart with estimated revenue.

Dashboards will be displayed immediately after a user logs in to CRM when using the Internet Explorer client, and acts as a type of 'homepage'. It streamlines processes and prevents a user having to search through the CRM system to obtain a list of data that can be displayed in the dashboard. It is suggested that users review their dashboard periodically in order to keep track of any activities that may require their attention.

Views can be created to access certain segments or subsets of data from CRM. These views can then be shared with other users.



## 8.1. CREATING A NEW DASHBOARD

To create a new dashboard in Microsoft CRM:

a) Select or hover over the **Microsoft Dynamics CRM** tab before clicking **Workplace** from the drop down list of the **Navigation Bar**.

	Microsoft Dynamics CRM	1 🗸 💼   WORKPLACE 🗸	Dashboards   🗸			(+) Create	System Administ 🔤 🔅 ?
	C WORKPLACE	SALES	Marketing	الله LOYALTY	الله Bookings	個 PRODUCT MANAGEM	▲ > VENUE MANAGEMENT
ľ							^

b) In the **Workplace** area of Microsoft CRM, select the **Workplace** tab in the Navigation Bar, from the drop down list of related areas select **Dashboards**.



c) The Dashboards view will be displayed, with the default dashboard. Select **New** on the ribbon.

🚈 Microsoft Dynamics CRM → 👘	WORKPLACE マ Dashboards   マ	🕀 Create
₽ SAVE AS 📲 NEW → SET AS DEFAULT	CREFRESH ALL 🛔 ADVANCED FIND	

d) The **Dashboard** form will be displayed prompting you to select a layout. Select a suitable layout and click **Create**.

3-Column Regular Dashboard 2-Column Regular Dashboard 3-Column Multi-Focused Das 3-Column Multi-Focused Das	4-Column Overview Dashboard 3-Column Focused Dashboard	<b>Column</b> Regular Dashboard This layout can accommodate components across three columns.
--	---	---

e) Enter a suitable name for the dashboard and click Save.

	🌆 Microsoft Dyn	amics CRM 🗸 🔥 🏫	WORKPLACE	🗸 Dashboards   🗸		① Create
Section     II: □     <	🕞 SAVE 🗙 CLOSE	E DIT COMPONENT	📲 CHART 🗮	LIST 🕀 WEB RESOURCE	IFRAME	
Section	Name: *					
	Section	∎ <b>!</b> ‡ ::: ⊡ ⊕				

f) You are now able to modify each section of the dashboard, creating custom views for each section.



g) To do this click one of the 4 icons in each section



h) This will open a new window prompting the user to select the relevant data and format.

Record Type Opportunity View My Open Opportunities Chart Top Customers V	ential Customer D M	Customers Ipen Opportunities Rockington College Saunders College		
	<u>B</u>	0.00	200.00 Sum (Est. Reve	400.00 nue) (£)

- i) Once all relevant data is selected, click **Add** to add it to the dashboard, this will return the user to the dashboard form, where the dashboard can be saved and closed.
- j) Below the ribbon is a small arrow, highlighted below. To access the dashboard in the **Dashboard View** select this arrow and choose your dashboard.



 k) To set a dashboard to default, when in the Dashboard view. Select Set As Default from the ribbon. The dashboard will be automatically selected.

Microsoft Dynam	ics CRM 🗸 🔥 🏫	WORKPLACE ~	Dashboards	~
🕞 SAVE AS 🛛 👯 NEW	HI SET AS DEFAULT	😂 REFRESH ALL 🕌	ADVANCED FINE	)

#### \*End of Document\*